SIGNIFICANT RFP COMMENTS

NASA Launch Services II (NLS II)

RFP10-99-0021 – Revision D
1.   Question:  Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.2.3, Page D1-22.  Why the change to Class 8 clean room environment versus Class 100K under NLS-1?
Response:  Class 8 clean room is the requirement in the ISO 14644 documents, which are the current NASA standards.  Federal Standard 209 is obsolete.

2.   Question:  Section C, Clause 4.0, Page C-12.  Would NASA consider adding an Off-Ramp Clause providers could use when a launch vehicle is no longer economically viable? 
Response:  Yes.  An Off-Ramp Clause has been added to the RFP.
3.   Question:  Section C, Clause 5.0, Table C-1, Page C-14.  Can the Payment Schedule percentages in Table C-1 be modified by providers?
Response:  No.  NASA needs a standard payment schedule in order to perform Spacecraft (S/C) budgeting.  NASA will consider changes to the payment schedule during the LSTO process.

4.   Question:  General Question.  Is it NASA’s intent that all providers be certified to ISO 9001:2008 prior to submittal of their proposal and before the 24 month transition period (11/15/2010)?
Response:  No.  NASA has modified the RFP to read, “ISO 9001/2000 third party certification (ISO 9001/2008 third party certification after November 2010).”

5.  Question: Section C, Clauses 19.4 and 19.5, Page C-30.  Why has the amount of maximum liquidated damages increased to $5,470,000? 


Response:  The amount increased due to the increase in maximum postponement period from twelve (12) months to eighteen (18) months (reference Clause 19.2).  
6.
Question:  Section C, Clause 19.0, Table C-5, Page C-30.  Can Table C-5 be modified by providers?

Response:  Yes.  The RFP has been modified to enable providers to propose the Liquidated Damages paid to NASA for each day of Launch Delay.  However, the stated time periods and Grace Days are not tailorable.  In addition, the “Maximum Liquidated Damages Paid by the Contractor” Column has been deleted from the table.
7.
Question:  Section C, Clause 28, Table C-9, Page C-42.  Would NASA consider reducing the Termination for Convenience of the Government Refund Percentages in Table C-9?
Response:  Yes.  NASA has revised the RFP to reduce the liability percentage to 50% for all periods.  

8. 
Question:  Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.2, Pages D-17 thru D-19.  Can the RFP be clarified to describe the times that the vehicle and GSE telemetry is required to be recorded with respect to the vehicle being powered?
Response:  Yes.  NASA has modified the RFP to clarify that testing will include any time the vehicle or stage is powered and exercised, with data transmitted from the flight telemetry system for the purpose of evaluating system health and function.

9.
Question:  Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.3, Page D1-19.  Is the Contractor responsible for transmitting telemetry, voice and video to the Payload Operation Control Center (POCC) during launch operations even if the POCC is off base?
Response:  The RFP has been modified to clarify that the Contractor will be responsible for transmitting telemetry, voice and video to the designated NASA LSP Data Center.
10. Question:  Attachment D8, Pages D8-1 thru D8-2.  Can the contractor propose alternate criteria in the Work Plan?

Response:  Yes.  The RFP has been modified to enable providers to customize the Work Plan to align with their standard launch service process as long as the Work Plan remains substantially the same as what is stated in the RFP.   In addition, the Request for Launch Service Proposals will state whether the Work Plan can be customized for a particular mission. 

11. Question:  Section C, Clause 24.0, Table C-8, Page C-36.  Would NASA consider reducing the penalty for a Partial Mission Success and for a Failed Mission?
Response:  In order to consider this, NASA needs more data to determine the impact to the standard launch service price as a result lowering the penalty for a Partial Mission Success and for a Failed Mission.  As a result, the RFP has been modified to request pricing for the following scenarios:

Scenario 1:  25% Mission Success penalty for a Failed Mission, as currently stated in Section C, Clause 24.0.

Scenario 2:  10% Mission Success penalty for a Failed Mission.  For full Mission Success, 100% of the launch service price will be paid; for a Partial Mission Success, 95% of the launch service price will be paid; and for a Failed Mission 90% of the launch service price will be paid.  There will be no funds reallocated/refunded to the Government.

NASA will evaluate the prices submitted for Scenario 1 and Scenario 2 by all providers and will then make a determination of which scenario to proceed with.  Once an approach is selected, it will apply to all providers.  Providers shall submit supporting information which substantiates the difference in price for the two scenarios.

12.
Question:  General Question.  Do all pricing tables assume a nominal L-30 mission integration cycle plus or minus 3 months? 
Response:  Yes.  The RFP has been modified to emphasize this.

13. Question: Attachment D1, Clause 2.3.1(C), Page D1-14.  It is not clear if all working groups as identified in  Attachment D1, Clause 2.3.1.C are to be considered as formal reviews requiring CDRL Cl-1 submission.  In addition, are Engineering Review Boards (ERBs) and Technical Interchange Meetings (TIMs) also to be considered as formal reviews which are defined in Attachment D1, Clause 2.2.1?


Response:  Working groups are not formal reviews and therefore the reference to CDRL C1-1 will be removed.  However, mission specific design reviews are considered formal reviews.  All other ERBs and TIMs are also not considered formal reviews by definition.

14. Question: Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.2, 1st Paragraph, Last Sentence, Page D1-17.  Can the sentence be revised to change the time frame for delivery of changes of vehicle and GSE telemetry formats ?


Response:  Yes.  NASA revised the sentence in the RFP to reflect a broader time frame for providing changes to telemetry formats.

15. Question: Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.2, 8th Paragraph, Page D1-18.  Can NASA revise this paragraph to clarify the console configuration requirement?

Response:  Yes.  NASA will revise the RFP to clarify this paragraph as it applies to the consoles occupied by the NASA launch team.

16.
Question:  Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.3, 2nd Paragraph, Page D1-19.  Can the LSC place members of NASA’s launch team in facilities other than the LCC?


Response:  It is up to the contractor to determine where the consoles will be located, and this will be evaluated once proposals are received.
17. Question: Attachment D1, Clause 9.0, Page D1-30.  Why was a requirement for Records Management added to the RFP?

Response: The RFP has been revised to delete this requirement.
18. Question: Section C Clause 25.7 (E), Page C-39.  Can the reference to the Systems Effectiveness Plan be removed, as it is no longer applicable?


Response:  Yes.  The RFP has been revised to remove the reference to Systems Effectiveness Plan.

19. Question: Section C, Clause 19.10, Page C-32.  Does the 150 days grace apply to both the contractor and NASA?


Response:  Yes.  The RFP has been revised to clarify that each party is entitled to 150 grace days.

20. Question:  Attachment D1, Clause 2.2.1.2, Page D1-7.   Please clarify the scope and intent of Mission Specific Design Reviews.


Response: The Design Reviews are scoped to ensure system level compatibility & interactions of services for the specific NASA mission.  Also included in the reviews are any derived requirements impacting standard, non-standard services, first flight, and mission unique items.  The RFP has been revised to clarify that NASA will only approve the mission unique items in the Mission Specific design reviews.
21. Question: Section C, Clause 2.4.2.3 (D) and (E), Page D1-23.  Can an equivalent methodology considering percentage obscuration and NVR using ASTM standards for PLF and PAF cleaning be considered?


Response: The RFP has been revised to add the option to clean the PLA & PLF to a percentage of obscuration and NVR using ASTM standards to allow commercial cleaning capabilities to be included along with current equivalent requirement to meet IEST standards.
22. Question: General Question.  Is the contractor solely responsible for compliance with Orbital Debris requirements (NPR 8715.6)? 

Response: The Contractor shall support NASA in the compliance with NPR 8715.6.
23. Question: Section C, Clause 5.4, Page C-13.  Why are payments limited to 20% of the total launch service price for Launch Service Task Orders issued 24 months or less prior to launch?


Response:  For missions with integration periods of less than 27 months, the amount paid at award will be tied to the cumulative percentages stated in Table C-1.  For example, for a mission with an integration period of 21 months, according to the Launch Service Payment Schedule, the contractor would be entitled to receive 30% of the total launch service price at award.  The RFP has been updated accordingly.
24. Question: Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.2, 3rd Paragraph, Page D1-17.  Can the RFP language be changed to require the plan no later than 6 months prior to launch or within 3 months after Contractor’s receipt of any change in NNC requirements, whichever is later?


Response: The RFP has been modified to require an initial plan no later than 6 months prior to launch, followed by a final plan due no later than 60 days prior to launch.

25. Question: Attachment D1, Clause 2.4.1.2.2, 3rd Paragraph, Page D1-17.  Can the RFP downrange asset requirements be revised to some period of time after receipt of the targeting information from NASA?


Response:  The RFP has been modified to require a draft version of the preliminary statements of work for downrange assets and the latest documentation required by the downrange assets (e.g. PRD, Expedite OR, etc.) for receiving, recording, and relaying the data no later than 120 days prior to launch.  The requirement for contract letters has been removed.  

26. Question: Section C, Clause 34(d)(2), Page C-56.  Does the requirement to maintain records for three years after final payment apply to all missions awarded from 2000 thru 2020?


Response:  Yes.  Records must be maintained for all missions until three years after final payment for the last launch on this contract.  This means the last launch after 2020.

Page 1 of 5

